

REFERENCES

Part 1. Transformative Commitments for Sustainable Urban Development

1.1 Sustainable Urban Development for social inclusion and ending poverty

1.1.1 Social Inclusion and ending poverty

1. Eradicate poverty in all its forms

Presidency Office. National Development Plan (2019-2024) published in the Official Journal of the Federation, July 12, 2019, recovered from: https://www.dof.gob.mx/nota_detalle.php?codigo=5565599&fecha=12/07/2019

Congress of the Union. Planning Law (2020-2024) published in the Official Journal of the Federation. February 16, 2018, recovered from: http://www.diputados.gob.mx/LeyesBiblio/pdf/59_160218.pdf

National Institute of Statistics and Geography (2021). National Survey of Occupation and Employment (ENOE) New Edition, recovered from: <https://www.inegi.org.mx/programas/enoe/15ymas/>

National Council for the Evaluation of Social Development Policy (CONEVAL) (2008-2018). Measurement of poverty. Urban poverty in Mexico, recovered from: <https://www.coneval.org.mx/Medicion/MP/Paginas/Pobreza-urbana-en-Mexico.aspx>

Development led by communities with a gender perspective (DLC-PG), The Hunger Project México, recovered from: <https://thp.org.mx/>

2. Reduce inequality in urban areas by promoting equally shared opportunities and benefits

3. Achieve social inclusion of vulnerable groups (women, youth, older persons, and persons with disabilities and migrants)

Ministry of Agrarian, Territorial and Urban Development (2020). Women in the Territory Strategy, recovered from:

<https://www.gob.mx/sedatu/acciones-y-programas/estrategia-mujeres-en-el-territorio>

Safe Cities and Safe Public Spaces for Women and Girls Programme, UN Women, recovered from:

<https://mexico.unwomen.org/es/digiteca/publicaciones/2016/01/folleto-ciudades-seguras#:~:text=El%20Programa%20insignia%20%22Ciudades%20y%20buenas%20pr%C3%A1cticas%20en%20la>

4. Ensure access to public spaces including streets, sidewalks, and cycling lanes

Ministry of Agrarian, Territorial and Urban Development (2020). Urban Improvement Programme, recovered from: <https://mimexicolate.gob.mx/tag/2020/>

Tactical urbanism interventions, in different mexican cities recovered from: <http://lugarespublicos.org/>

School Path Methodology developed by the Pedestrian League, recovered from: <http://www.caminitodelaescuela.org/>

Playing My Neighborhood by Explorers of the City, recovered from: <https://exploradoresdelaciudad.org/jugando-mi-barrio-las-penas-iztapalapa/>

Ranking of Cyclocities, recovered from: <http://ciclociudades.mx/ranking-ciclociudades/>

Compilation of Best Practices in Sustainable Mobility, recovered from: <https://www.gob.mx/sedatu/acciones-y-programas/ciudades-para-la-movilidad-mejores-practicas-en-mexico-225545>

German Cooperation GIZ, website: <https://www.giz.de/en/worldwide/33041.html>

ITDP Mexico, website: <https://mexico.itdp.org/>

WRI Mexico, website: <https://wrimexico.org/>

British Embassy in Mexico, website: <https://www.gov.uk/world/organisations/british-embassy-mexico-city.es-419>

1.1.2 Access to adequate housing

1. Ensure access to adequate and affordable housing

UN-Habitat (2017). The New Urban Agenda. Adopted at the United Nations Conference on Housing and Sustainable Urban Development (Habitat III) in Quito, Ecuador, on 20 October 2016. <http://uploads.habitat3.org/hb3/NUA-Spanish.pdf>

UN-Habitat (2018). The public space: Key component in a sustainable city. United Nations Human Settlements Program (UN-Habitat), Global Urban Indicators Database 2012. Global urban indicators database 2013. <https://onuhabitat.org.mx/index.php/el-espacio-publico-componente-clave-de-una-ciudad-sostenible>

Ministry of Agrarian, Territorial and Urban Development (2019). National Housing Program 2019-2024, recovered from:

<https://www.gob.mx/sedatu/documentos/programa-nacional-de-vivienda-2019-2024>

Ministry of Agrarian, Territorial and Urban Development (SEDATU). Sectoral Programme for Agrarian, Territorial and Urban Development 2020-2024.

https://www.dof.gob.mx/nota_detalle.php?codigo=5595683&fecha=26/06/2020

Housing and SDGs in Mexico, UN-Habitat and INFONAVIT, recovered from:

<https://onuhabitat.org.mx/index.php/la-vivienda-en-el-centro-de-los-ods-en-mexico>

Universal Housing project: for the right to adequate housing, recovered from:

<https://sdsnmxico.mx/banco-de-proyectos/comunidades-sostenibles-y-bienestar-social/vivienda-universal/>

Habitat for Humanity Mexico, website: <https://www.habitatmexico.org/>

Habitat International Coalition: <https://hic-al.org/>

Reconstruction and disaster response, Carlos Slim Foundation, recovered from:

<https://fundacioncarlosslim.org/sismos/>

Construction of Emergency Housing, project by TECHO, recovered from:

<https://www.techo.org/>

2. Ensure access to sustainable housing finance options

Institute of the National Housing Fund for Workers (2021). Green Mortgage, recovered from:

https://portalmx.infonavit.org.mx/wps/portal/infonavit.web/proveedores-externos/para-tu-gestion/desarrolladores/hipoteca-verde!ut/p/z1/pZJbC4JAEIV_ja_OqLIYb2uYF6QLKNm-hMW2GuqGWf79xJ6CUqF5m-E7M4fDAIMEWJU-c5E2uazSousPjByJi-gtZ9raDVDH3caOtrFuBzPPhP0AYBBCgP2h30YT9bqF6NrYAZZnIV05vjMPDd2NtWI6_FEU_HfA2x4_R7YwAmDOGOEICNAn2EPDIU0ZjMAJgp5en8ErU6GJYDV_MJrXquPuhtnTXO7LxRUsGl bVUgpCq6eZangN0km7w0knyTcyrrBHP_ahbPkL4AaWPiCw!!/dz/d5/L2dBISEvZ0FBIS9nQSEh/

3. Establish security of tenure

National Agrarian Registry (RAN). Official Website, recovered from: <https://www.gob.mx/ran>

4. Establish slum upgrading programmes

Ministry of Agrarian, Territorial and Urban Development (2020). Urban Improvement Programme. <https://mimexicolate.gob.mx/tag/2020/>

Community initiatives implemented in Mexico City through the Neighborhood Improvement Program, recovered from: <https://sibiso.cdmx.gob.mx/programa-mejoramiento-barrial-y-comunitario>, http://seduvi.proyectosurbanos.cdmx.gob.mx/cetram/sac_tacubaya.html and <https://www.seduvi.cdmx.gob.mx/storage/app/uploads/public/5f1/5da/9be/5f15da9be1025895169472.pdf>

Campana-Altamira Initiative, Monterrey, recovered from: <http://www.monterrey.gob.mx/oficial/documentos/Noticias/2021/PROYECTO%20DEL%20PROGRAMA%20PARCIAL%20DE%20DESARROLLO%20URBANO%20DISTRITO%20CAMPANA%20ALTAMIRA.pdf> and <https://tec.mx/es/noticias/nacional/institucion/esta-iniciativa-busca-apoyar-la-zona-donde-se-filmo-ya-no-estoy-aqui>

1.1.3 Access to basic services

1. Provide access to safe drinking water, sanitation and solid waste disposal

Ministry of Health (SSA). Sectoral Health Programme 2020-2024, recovered from: https://www.dof.gob.mx/nota_detalle.php?codigo=5598474&fecha=17/08/2020

UN-Habitat (2019). Elements of Adequate Housing, recovered from: <https://onuhabitat.org.mx/index.php/elementos-de-una-vivienda-adecuada>

Ministry of Environment and Natural Resources (2020). Basic Diagnostics for Integral Waste Management, recovered from: <https://www.gob.mx/cms/uploads/attachment/file/554385/DBGIR-15-mayo-2020.pdf>

Government of the free and sovereign state of Quintana Roo (2019). Law for the Prevention, Integral Management and Circular Economy of Waste in the State of Quintana Roo, recovered from: https://normas.cndh.org.mx/Documentos/Quintana%20Roo/Ley_PGIECRE_QRoo.pdf

Urban Island initiative, recovered from: <https://islaurbana.org/>

Safe Water For All, Lake Valsequillo, recovered from: <https://sdsnmxico.mx/banco-de-proyectos/comunidades-sostenibles-y-bienestar-social/agua-salubre-para-todos/>

2. Ensure access to safe and efficient public transport system

Ministry of Communications and Transport (SCT). Sectoral Communications and Transport Programme, 2020-2024.

https://www.dof.gob.mx/nota_detalle.php?codigo=5596042&fecha=02/07/2020

Maya Train Unite Us (2021), recovered from: <https://www.trenmaya.gob.mx/>

DOT MX initiative by the ITDP, recovered from: <http://itdp.mx/dotmx/#/>

Compilation of Best Practices in Sustainable Mobility, recovered from:
<https://www.gob.mx/sedatu/acciones-y-programas/ciudades-para-la-movilidad-mejores-practicas-en-mexico-225545>

3. Provide access to modern renewable energy

Ministry of Energy (2019). National Energy Balance Sheet.

<https://www.gob.mx/sener/documentos/balance-nacional-de-energia-2019>

1.2 Sustainable and inclusive urban prosperity and opportunities for all

1.2.1 Inclusive Urban Economy

1. Achieve productive employment for all including youth employment

Ministry of Labour and Social Welfare (STPS). Sectoral Programme of Labour and Social Welfare, 2020-2024, recovered from:

https://www.dof.gob.mx/nota_detalle.php?codigo=5595490&fecha=24/06/2020

Ministry of Finance and Public Credit (2020). Special Program for Productivity and Competitiveness 2020-2024, from the National Development Plan 2020-2024, recovered from:

https://www.dof.gob.mx/nota_detalle.php?codigo=5609267&fecha=31/12/2020

INEGI (2020). National Survey of Occupation and Employment, recovered from:
<https://www.inegi.org.mx/programas/enoe/15ymas/>

2. Strengthen the informal economy

Ministry of Labour and Social Welfare (2020). Employment Support Program, recovered from:

https://www.gob.mx/cms/uploads/attachment/file/522342/ROPAE_2020_PUBLICADAS_EN_DOF.PDF

3. Support small and medium-sized enterprises

Official Journal of the Federation (2020). Rules of Operation of the Agricultural, Livestock, Fisheries and Aquaculture Development Programme, Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Development (SADER), recovered from:

http://www.dof.gob.mx/nota_detalle.php?codigo=5590429&fecha=25/03/2020

4. Promote and enabling, fair and responsible environment for business and innovation

Ministry of Economy (SE). Sectoral Economy Programme, 2020-2024.

<https://www.gob.mx/se/acciones-y-programas/programa-sectorial-de-economia-2020-2024>

UN-Habitat (2020). UN-Habitat and UNIDO partner with Mexico for novel urban planning perspectives, recovered from: <https://unhabitat.org/un-habitat-and-unido-partner-with-mexico-for-novel-urban-planning-perspectives>

1.2.2. Sustainable prosperity for all

1. Diversify of the urban economy and promote cultural and creative industries

Ministry of Culture. Sectoral Culture Program (2020-2024), recovered from:

https://www.dof.gob.mx/nota_detalle.php?codigo=5596142&fecha=03/07/2020

2. Develop technical and entrepreneurial skills to thrive in a modern urban economy

Ministry of Finance and Public Credit (2020-2024). National Development Financial Programme.

https://www.finanzaspublicas.hacienda.gob.mx/work/models/Finanzas_Publicas/docs/pronafide/pronafide2020.pdf

Ministry of Finance and Public Credit (2020-2024). Special Programme for Productivity and Competitiveness.

https://www.dof.gob.mx/nota_detalle.php?codigo=5609267&fecha=31/12/2020

3. Develop urban-rural linkages to maximize productivity

1.3 Environmentally Sustainable and Resilient Urban Development

1.3.1 Resilience, Mitigation and Adaptation of Cities and Human Settlements

1. Minimize urban sprawl and loss of biodiversity resulting from it

Sectoral Programme for the Environment and Natural Resources, 2020-2024.
https://www.dof.gob.mx/nota_detalle.php?codigo=5596232&fecha=07/07/2020

Ministry of Environment and Natural Resources (2015). Intersecretariat Commission on Climate Change. Actions and Programmes.

<https://www.gob.mx/semarnat/acciones-y-programas/comision-intersecretarial-de-cambio-climatico-cicc>

Ministry of Environment and Natural Resources (2018). National System on Climate Change.

<https://www.gob.mx/inecc/acciones-y-programas/sistema-nacional-de-cambio-climatico-sinacc>

National Institute of Ecology and Climate Change (2013-2020). Studies and Research of the National Institute of Ecology and Climate Change.

https://www.gob.mx/inecc/acciones-y-programas/estudios-y-asesorias-esquema_2

National Institute of Ecology and Climate Change (2019). Analysis of the incorporation of climate policy into planning instruments.

<https://www.gob.mx/inecc/documentos/analisis-de-la-vinculacion-de-instrumentos-normativos-de-planeacion-y-programaticos-de-temas-estrategicos-con-la-politica-nacional-de-cambi>

2. Implement climate change mitigation and adaptation actions

ADAPTUR. Mexico-Germany Cooperation Project Implemented by German Cooperation for Sustainable Development (Deutsche Gesellschaft für Internationale Zusammenarbeit, GIZ), Ministry of Tourism (SECTUR), Ministry of Environment and Natural Resources (SEMARNAT), the National Commission of Natural Protected Areas (CONANP), and the

National Institute of Ecology and Climate Change (INECC) recovered from: <https://adaptur.mx/>

Mexico on climate change. Official Website, recovered from: <https://cambioclimatico.gob.mx/>

National Institute of Ecology and Climate Change (2021). Climate change head-on. Disclosure platform, recovered from: <http://elcambioclimaticodefrente.inecc.gob.mx/>

National Institute of Ecology and Climate Change. National Atlas of Vulnerability to Climate Change recovered from: <https://atlasvulnerabilidad.inecc.gob.mx/page/index.html>

Information on subnational climate policy, recovered from: <https://cambioclimatico.gob.mx/estadosymunicipios/Intro.html>

National Institute of Ecology and Climate Change (2021). Eco-vehicles <https://www.ecovehiculos.inecc.gob.mx/>

3. Develop systems to reduce the impact of natural and human-made disasters

Geological Survey of Mexico (2017), recovered from: <https://www.sgm.gob.mx/Web/MuseoVirtual/Riesgos-geologicos/Sismologia-de-Mexico.html>

National Centre for Disaster Prevention (2020). Special Series- Socioeconomic Impact of the main disasters that occurred in Mexico in 2000.

http://www.cenapred.unam.mx/PublicacionesWebGobMX/buscar_buscaSubcategoria.action

National Centre for Disaster Prevention (2019-2020). Publications Geological Risks, Chemical and Health Risks, Prevention/Preparation, Special and Institutional Series. <http://www.cenapred.unam.mx/PublicacionesWebGobMX/buscaindex>

Ministry of Environment and Natural Resources (2011). National Water Commission. Manual for flood control. <http://cenca.imta.mx/pdf/manual-para-el-control-de-inundaciones.pdf>

National Water Commission (2019). National Program against Hydraulic Contingencies. National Flood Risk Atlas <https://www.gob.mx/conagua/acciones-y-programas/atlas-nacional-de-riesgo-por-inundacion-204625>

Natural Disaster Prevention Fund. (FOPREDEN)

<http://www.cenapred.unam.mx/es/ProyectosFopredenCenapred/>

4. Build urban resilience through quality infrastructure and spatial planning

Methodological Guide: Municipal Strategy of Integral Management of Disaster Risks, recovered from: <http://70.35.196.242/onuhabitatmexico/Gu%C3%ADa-Metodol%C3%B3gica-EMGIRDE.pdf>

Municipal Socioeconomic Recovery Methodological Guide in Context of COVID-19, recovered from: <http://70.35.196.242/onuhabitatmexico/Guia-Covid.pdf>

1.3.2. Sustainable Management and Use of Natural Resources

1. Strengthen the sustainable management of natural resources in urban areas

Air Quality National Information System (2021), recovered from: <https://sinaica.inecc.gob.mx/>

2. Drive resource conservation and waste reduction, reuse, and recycling

Ministry of Environment and Natural Resources (2020-2024). Basic Diagnosis for Integral Waste Management, recovered from:

<https://www.gob.mx/cms/uploads/attachment/file/554385/DBGIR-15-mayo-2020.pdf>

3. Implement environmentally sound management of water resources and coastal areas

4. Adopt a smart-city approach that leverages digitization, clean energy and technologies

Federal Telecommunications Institute (22/2021). Press Release, recovered from:

<http://www.ift.org.mx/comunicacion-y-medios/comunicados-ift/es/crecen-en-un-ano-34-los-accesos-del-servicio-fijo-de-internet-por-medio-de-fibra-optica-comunicado>

Part 2: Effective Implementation

2.1 Building Governance Structure: Establishing a Supportive Framework

1. Decentralize to enable subnational and local governments undertake their assigned responsibilities

Ministry of Finance and Public Credit (2020). Federation Expenditure Budget. Section 33 recovered from:

https://www.ppef.hacienda.gob.mx/work/models/PPEF2020/docs/33/r33_ep.pdf

Ministry of Finance and Public Credit (2020). Which are the funds of Section 33, recovered from:

<https://ramo33.com.mx/que-son-los-fondos-de-ramo-33/>

National Institute of Statistics and Geography (2019). Subnational and local public finance statistics, recovered from:

https://www.inegi.org.mx/sistemas/olap/proyectos/bd/continuas/finanzaspublicas/fpmun.asp?s=est&c=11289&proy=efipem_fmun

2. Link urban policies to finance mechanisms and budgets

Ministry of Agrarian, Territorial and Urban Development (SEDATU). Matrix of Indicators for Results of the Secretariat's Budget Programmes (2020), recovered from:

<https://www.gob.mx/sedatu/documentos/matriz-de-indicadores-para-resultados-de-los-programas-presupuestarios-de-la-secretaria-2020>

3. Develop legal and policy frameworks to enhance the ability of governments to implement urban policies

Ministry of Agrarian, Territorial and Urban Development (2020). New public consultation: NOM of public spaces in human settlements, recovered from:

<https://www.gob.mx/sedatu/prensa/pone-sedatu-a-consulta-publica-nueva-nom-de-espacios-publicos-en-los-asentamientos-humanos?idiom=es#:~:text=La%20Norma%20Oficial%20Mexicana%20>

4. Build the capacity of local and subnational governments to implement local and metropolitan multilevel governance

National Institute for Federalism and Municipal Development (2019). National Metropolitan Network, recovered from:

<https://www.gob.mx/inafed/articulos/invitacion-a-la-red-nacional-metropolitana-renamet>

Metropolitan Governance Manual and Toolkit, recovered from:
<https://www.gob.mx/sedatu/documentos/manual-y-caja-de-herramientas-de-gobernanza>

Metropolitan Governance: The government of the metropolis for sustainable urban development, recovered from: <https://publications.iadb.org/es/gobernanza-metropolitana-el-gobierno-de-las-metropolis-para-el-desarrollo-urbano-sostenible>

5. Implement participatory, age-and gender-responsive approaches to urban policy and planning

Ministry of Agrarian, Territorial and Urban Development (2019). Guide to the implementation of the Community Participation Modality, recovered from:

<https://mimexicolate.gob.mx/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/Gu%C3%ADa-de-Implementaci%C3%B3n-Participaci%C3%B3n-Comunitaria-PMU-2019.pdf>

National exploratory study on appropriation of urban public space, recovered from:
<https://www.researchgate.net/profile/Elsa-Perez-Paredes>

Placemaking Latinoamerica Network, recovered from:
<http://lugarespublicos.org/proyecto/placemaking-latinoam-rica-2018.html>

School Path Methodology developed by the Pedestrian League, recovered from:
<http://www.caminitodelaescuela.org/>

Playing My Neighborhood by Explorers of the City, recovered from:
<http://exploradoresdelaciudad.org/jugando-mi-barrio-las-penas-iztapalapa/>

6. Achieve women's full participation in all fields and levels of decision-making

UN-Habitat (2019). International Guidelines on Decentralization and Access to Basic Services for All, recovered from: https://www.uclg.org/sites/default/files/guidelines_0.pdf

Inclusive Cities: Urban Productivity through Gender Equity, IADB, recovered from:
<https://publications.iadb.org/es/ciudades-inclusivas-un-camino-hacia-la-productividad-urbana-partir-de-la-igualdad-de-genero>

2.2 Planning and Managing Urban Spatial Development

1. Implement integrated and balanced territorial development policies

Ministry of Agrarian, Territorial and Urban Development (SEDATU) (2020). Participatory methodology for the elaboration of the Sectoral Programme for Agrarian, Territorial, and Urban Development 2020-2024, recovered from:
<https://www.gob.mx/sedatu/documentos/metodologia-participativa-para-la-elaboracion-del-programa-sectorial-de-desarrollo-agrario-territorial-y-urbano>

Mario Molina Centre (2020). Sustainable Cities, recovered from:
<https://centromariomolina.org/ciudades-sustentables/#:~:text=El%20objetivo%20es%20lograr%20una,el%20agua%20y%20la%20energ%C3%ADa.>

World Resources Institute (2020). Law of Human Settlements, Territorial Planning and Urban Development, recovered from: <https://wrimexico.org/our-work/projects/ley-general-de-asentamientos-urbanos-y-ordenamiento-territorial>

World Resources Institute (2018). Create a technical coalition to accelerate urban transformation and fight poverty, recovered from:
<https://wrimexico.org/news/crean-coalici%C3%B3n-t%C3%A9cnica-para-acelerar-la-transformaci%C3%B3n-urbana-y-combatir-la->

[pobreza#:~:text=La%20Coalici%C3%B3n%20para%20la%20Transformaci%C3%B3n%20Urbana%20en%20M%C3%A9xico%20](#)

2. Integrate housing into urban development plans

Ministry of Agrarian, Territorial and Urban Development (2020). Simplified Guidelines to prepare Municipal Urban Development Plans and Programmes, recovered from:

<https://www.gob.mx/sedatu/documentos/lineamientos-simplificados-para-la-elaboracion-de-planes-o-programas-municipales-de-desarrollo-urbano>

Ministry of Agrarian, Territorial and Urban Development (2019). National Housing Program 2019-2024, recovered from: <https://www.gob.mx/sedatu/documentos/programa-nacional-de-vivienda-2019-2024>

Ministry of Agrarian, Territorial and Urban Development (SEDATU). Sectoral Programme for Agrarian, Territorial and Urban Development 2020-2024.

https://www.dof.gob.mx/nota_detalle.php?codigo=5595683&fecha=26/06/2020

UN-Habitat (2018). Housing and SDGs in Mexico, recovered from: <https://onuhabitat.org.mx/index.php/la-vivienda-en-el-centro-de-los-ods-en-mexico>

3. Include culture as a priority component of urban planning

Ministry of Agrarian, Territorial and Urban Development (SEDATU). Sectoral Programme for Agrarian, Territorial and Urban Development 2020-2024.

<https://www.gob.mx/sedatu/acciones-y-programas/programa-sectorial-de-desarrollo-agrario-territorial-y-urbano-2020-2024>

Mexican Government (2019). UNESCO-FONATUR Collaboration Agreement on Mayan Train. Press Release 453. Recovered from: <https://www.gob.mx/sre/prensa/unesco-fonatur-collaboration-agreement-on-mayan-train>

Fundación Hogares (2019). Impact evaluation of the urban art, facade paint and rehabilitation of public spaces programmes. Recovered from: <https://www.fundacionhogares.org/publicaciones/>

4. Implement planned urban extension and infill, urban renewal, and regeneration of urban areas

National Institute of Sustainable Land (INSUS). National Soil Policy (2020).
<https://www.gob.mx/insus/documentos/politica-nacional-de-suelo>

ITESM (2020). Distrito tec, recovered from: <https://distratotec.itesm.mx/>

5. Improved capacity for urban planning and design, and training for urban planners at all levels of government

Cities Alliance (2019). Housing Laboratories (LAVs): Towards new collective forms of building knowledge for sustainable and inclusive development in Latin America and the Caribbean, recovered from: <https://www.citiesalliance.org/newsroom/news/urban-news/laboratorios-de-vivienda-lavs-hacia-nuevas-formas-colectivas-de-o>

UN-Habitat (2019). Online course. Methodological guide for municipal socioeconomic recovery in the context of COVID-19, recovered from: <https://guiamunicipioscovid19.info/>

World Resources Institute (2020). Strengthening Local Capacities, recovered from: <https://wrimexico.org/our-work/projects/fortalecimiento-de-capacidades-locales>

6. Strengthen the role of small and intermediate cities and towns

Urban Centre (2020). SEDATU promotes the territorial ordering of the southeast region, recovered from:
<https://centrourbano.com/2020/11/13/sedatu-ordenamiento-territorial-3/>

UN-Habitat (2018). UN-Habitat provides substantive and technical support to the National Fund for the Promotion of Tourism (FONATUR), recovered from:
<https://onuhabitat.org.mx/index.php/tren-maya>

British Embassy (2020). Prosperity Fund Mexico Programme, recovered from:
<https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/prosperity-fund-mexico-programm>

7. Implement sustainable multimodal public transport systems including non-motorized options

UN-Habitat (2015). International Guidelines on Urban and Territorial Planning.
https://www.uclg.org/sites/default/files/ig-utp_english.pdf

World Resources Institute (2016). TOD guide for urban communities. Recovered from: <https://wrimexico.org/publication/gu%C3%ADa-dots-para-comunidades-urbanas>

World Resources Institute (2021). Mobility Laws and Local Regulations. Recovered from: <https://wrimexico.org/our-work/projects/leyes-de-movilidad-y-normativas-locales>

2.3 Means of implementation

2.3.1 Mobilization of Financial Resources

1. Develop financing frameworks for implementing the NUA at all levels of government

Ministry of Agrarian, Territorial and Urban Development (SEDATU). Sectoral Programme for Agrarian, Territorial and Urban Development 2020-2024, recovered from: https://www.dof.gob.mx/nota_detalle.php?codigo=5595683&fecha=26/06/2020

2. Mobilize endogenous (internal) sources of finance and expand the revenue base of subnational and local governments

Ministry of Finance and Public Credit (SHCP). (2021). Annual Financing Plan, recovered from: https://www.finanzaspublicas.hacienda.gob.mx/work/models/Finanzas_Publicas/docs/paquete_economico/paf/paf_2021.pdf

3. Formulate sound systems of financial transfers from national to subnational and local governments based on needs, priorities and functions

Ministry of Finance and Public Credit (2020). Federation Expenditure Budget, recovered from: <https://www.ppef.hacienda.gob.mx/es/PPEF2020/generales>

Ministry of Finance and Public Credit (2020). Federation Expenditure Budget. Section 28, recovered from: https://www.ppef.hacienda.gob.mx/work/models/PPEF2020/docs/28/r28_ep.pdf

Ministry of Finance and Public Credit (2020). Federation Expenditure Budget. Section 33, recovered from: https://www.ppef.hacienda.gob.mx/work/models/PPEF2020/docs/33/r33_ep.pdf

- 4. Mobilize and establish financial intermediaries (multilateral institutions, regional development banks, subnational and local development funds; pooled financing mechanisms, etc) for urban financing.**

UN-Habitat (2018). Financing Alternatives for Urban Projects, recovered from:

<https://onuhabitat.org.mx/index.php/alternativas-de-financiamiento-para-proyectos-urbanos#:~:text=Una%20significativa%20fuente%20de%20financiamiento,ciudades%20es%20la%20banca%20multilateral.&text=Adem%C3%A1s%2C%20para%20algunos%20pa%C3%ADs%2C%20calificados,o%20con%20inter%C3%A9s%20al%200%25.>

2.3.2 Capacity Development

- 1. Expand opportunities for city-to-city cooperation and fostering exchanges of urban solutions and mutual learning**

Ministry of Foreign Affairs (2019). The ABC for the internationalization of Mexican Cities.

<https://www.gob.mx/sre/prensa/presenta-sre-el-libro-abc-para-la-internacionalizacion-de-las-ciudades-mexicanas>

Microsite of the Integral, Regional and Urban Development Project in southeastern Mexico.

Regional corridor Tren Maya, recovered from:

<http://onuhabitat.org.mx/index.php/noticias/noticias-de-onu-habitat-en-mexico/tren-maya>

British Embassy, Cities of the Future Program, recovered from:

<https://www.ciudadesdelfuturo.mx/#:~:text=El%20objetivo%20del%20Programa%20Ciudades,especialmente%20para%20ni%C3%B1as%20y%20mujeres.>

Emerging and sustainable cities IDB, recovered from:

<https://www.iadb.org/es/noticias/mexico-impulsara-el-desarrollo-urbano-y-medioambiental-en-diversas-ciudades-con-apoyo-del>

- 2. Implement capacity development as a effective, multifaced approach to formulate, implement, manage, monitor, and evaluate urban development policies**
- 3. Build capacity at all levels of government to use data in evidence-based policy formulation, including collecting and using data for minority groups**

National Institute of Statistics and Geography (2021). <https://www.inegi.org.mx/>

Prosperous cities, initiative in México, ONU-Habitat, recovered from:
<http://onuhabitat.org.mx/index.php/herramientas/cpi>

WRI Mexico Urban Inequality Index, recovered from:
<https://wrimexico.org/publication/indice-de-desigualdad-urbana>

4. Build the capacity of all levels of government to work with vulnerable groups to participate effectively in decision-making about urban and territorial development

Municipal Planning Institute of San Luis Potosí IMPLAN (2020). Consult vulnerable groups, recovered from:
<https://sanluisimplan.gob.mx/consulta-publica-a-grupos-en-situacion-de-vulnerabilidad/>

Equity Park. Participatory planning, recovered from:
<http://onuhabitat.org.mx/index.php/noticias/noticias-de-onu-habitat-en-mexico/quintana-roo/el-parque-de-la-equidad>

Vision of the city of St. Nicolás de los Garza by 2030. Participatory planning, recovered from:
<http://onuhabitat.org.mx/index.php/noticias/noticias-de-onu-habitat-en-mexico/san-nicolas-de-los-garza-n-l>

5. Engage local government association as promoters and providers of capacity development

National Institute of Statistics and Geography (2019). National Survey of Quality and Government Impact, recovered from:
<https://www.inegi.org.mx/programas/encig/2019/>

National Institute for Federalism and Municipal Development INAFED (2018). By strengthening the institutional capacities of municipal governments, we will ensure that local actions define the global, recovered from:
<https://www.gob.mx/inafed/articulos/al-fortalecer-las-capacidades-institucionales-de-los-gobiernos-municipales-lograremos-que-las-acciones-desde-lo-local-definan-lo-global>

6. Implement capacity development programmers on the use of legal land-based revenue and financing and other tools

7. Implement capacity development programmes of subnational and local governments in financial planning and management

Knowledge transfer and technical capacity building program of local public authorities and servers based on the context of the “Municipal Socio- Economic Recovery Methodological Guide in the Context of COVID- 19: Step by Step towards Municipal Resilience”, recovered from: <https://guiamunicipioscovid19.info/>

8. Increase cooperation and knowledge exchange on science, technology and innovation to benefit sustainable urban development

National Council of Science and Technology (2021). Strategic National Programs, recovered from: <https://www.conacyt.gob.mx/Que-son-los-pronaces.html>

National Council of Science and Technology (2021). Pronaces- Socio-ecological System, recovered from: <https://www.conacyt.gob.mx/Pronaces-Sistemas-Socioecologicos.html>

Official Journal of the Federation (2020). Agreement issuing the Institutional Program 2020-2024 of the National Council of Science and Technology (CONACYT), recovered from: https://www.dof.gob.mx/nota_detalle.php?codigo=5595309&fecha=23/06/2020

2.3.3 Information Technology and Innovation

1. Development of user-friendly, participatory data and digital platforms through e-governance and citizen-centric digital governance tools

Federal Government (2021). E.firma, recovered from: <https://www.gob.mx/efirma>

Judiciary of Mexico (2021). Electronic System of the Judiciary, recovered from: https://www.firel.pjf.gob.mx/peticion_certificado.aspx

2. Expand the deployment of frontier technologies and innovations to enhance shared prosperity of cities and regions

Federal Telecommunications Institute (2019). Communications and Media Official Website, recovered from: <http://www.ift.org.mx/comunicacion-y-medios/comunicados-ift/es/el-ift-y-la-agencia-digital-de-innovacion-publica-de-la-ciudad-de-mexico-firman-convenio-de>

The Government of Mexico City (2021). Digital Agency for Public Innovation, recovered from: <https://adip.cdmx.gob.mx/>

The Government of Mexico City (2021). Updated information every day to buy, rent or recharge oxygen tanks in Mexico City, recovered from: <https://oxigenocdmx.cc/>

The Government of Mexico City (2021). Vaccination Portal of Mexico city, recovered from: <https://vacunacion.cdmx.gob.mx/>

WRI Mexico Propulcity Initiative, recovered from: <https://propulcity.mx/>

“Participatory- Habitat” Initiative in General Escobedo, recovered from: <https://escobedo-pb.unhabitat.org/>

3. Implement digital tools, including geospatial information systems to improve urban and territorial planning, land administration and access to urban services

4. Build capacities at all levels of government to effectively monitor the implementation of urban development policies

Observatory Jalisco How we're going? Observatory, recovered from: <http://www.jaliscocomovamos.org/>

Observatory Nuevo Leon How we're going? recovered from: <http://www.comovamosnl.org/>

5. Strengthen all levels of government and the civil society in the collection, disaggregation and analysis of data

UN-Habitat (2020). UN-Habitat COVID-19 platform tracks hundreds of new cities, recovered from: <https://unhabitat.org/un-habitat-covid-19-platform-tracks-hundreds-of-new-cities>

UN-Habitat (2021). COVID-19 Readiness & Response, recovered from: <https://unhabitat.citiiq.com/>

Part 3: Follow-up and review

Ministry of Agrarian, Territorial and Urban Development SEDATU- UN-Habitat (2021). Building the Report of the Implementation of the New Urban Agenda, recovered from: <https://fb.watch/4rgAc7FaL7/>